
Business Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
Date: Tuesday, 5 March 2019
Time: 6.00 p.m.
Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

This meeting will be webcast at
https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Contact Officer: Mark Hardman
Tel: 0151 691 8363
e-mail: markhardman@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
/ PARTY WHIP 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

Members are reminded that they should also declare whether they are 
subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be considered 
and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement.

3. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Business 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 22 January 2019.

4. FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 3 2018/19 (Pages 
15 - 22)

5. ABSENCE MANAGEMENT (Pages 23 - 38)

Public Document Pack



6. 2018/19 QUARTER 3 WIRRAL PLAN PERFORMANCE (Pages 39 - 
50)

7. UPDATE ON LIVERPOOL CITY REGION DEVELOPMENTS (Pages 
51 - 56)

8. BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME (Pages 57 - 66)

Audio/Visual Recording of Meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees 
using non-disruptive methods. For particular meetings we may identify a 
‘designated area’ for you to record from. If you have any questions about this 
please contact Committee and Civic Services (members of the press please 
contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the 
discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons, including disruption 
caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.

Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the 
material produced so that it can be reused and edited by all local people and 
organisations on a non-commercial basis.



BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 22 January 2019

Present: Councillor P Hackett (Chair)

Councillors J Stapleton
J Bird
C Blakeley
T Cox
D Elderton
J McManus

D Mitchell
J Robinson
T Usher
KJ Williams
S Williams

Deputy: Councillor B Berry (In place of K Hodson) 

Apologies Councillor C Spriggs

35 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillor Kathy Hodson who had a deputy 
standing in for her and from Councillor Christine Spriggs.

36 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST / 
PARTY WHIP 

Members were asked to consider whether they had any disclosable pecuniary 
interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection with any item(s) on 
this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state the nature of the interest.

Members were reminded that they should also declare whether they were 
subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be considered and, if 
so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping arrangement.

No such declarations were received.

37 MINUTES 

Members were requested to receive the minutes of the Business Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 28 November, 2018.

Councillor Chris Blakeley asked that the minutes be amended to show 
Councillor Pat Hackett’s name in the ‘Apologies’ section of the minutes.

Resolved – That, subject to the alteration above, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 28 November, 2019, be approved.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



38 IMPACT OF CAR PARKING CHARGES IN COUNTRY PARKS - UPDATE 

Steve Atkins, Parking Services Manager, introduced a report which provided 
an update on the income generated from parking charges at the Country 
Parks.

Since charging was introduced in the week commencing 22 January 2018, the 
total income received up to 31 December 2018 was £168,000. This included 
£27,100 from the sale of 542 annual parking permits. The annual parking 
permits could be used in any vehicle and in any of the Country Parks so 
represented value for money for regular park users. The total number of 
transactions (parking tickets purchased) was approximately 139,000 for the 
same period. This patronage at car parks didn’t directly reflect on visitor 
numbers as driving / parking habits might have changed since the introduction 
of the parking charges.

To date £100,000 had been spent or committed to maintenance and 
improvements at the Country Parks which could be related to car parking, e.g. 
resurfacing of the car park at Arrowe Country Park.

These proposals had met the predicted increased income to the Council of 
£150,000 p.a. which had been included in the Council budget for future years.

If parking charges were removed from the Country Parks then this would 
result in a deficit in the Council’s approved financial plan for future years of 
over £150,000 which would need to be covered by compensatory savings or 
income from other service areas.

Further information had also been circulated to the Committee which included 
a comparison of the estimated / predicted costs with the actual outcomes and 
this information was up to and including 18 January, 2019.

The report recommended that the contents were noted, that charging for 
parking at the Country Parks remained and that the impact of the charges on 
traffic management issues was continually monitored.

Councillor Chris Blakeley stated that the Conservative Group was totally 
opposed to car parking charges in country parks as the Council should be 
encouraging people to attend parks and open spaces to benefit the physical 
and mental health of residents.  

A  Member commented upon the detrimental impact to businesses at 
Eastham Country Park and that not one business in the vicinity had been 
contacted by the Authority. 

Another Member suggested that visitor numbers should be looked at over the 
next 3 years or so to see if numbers increased or decreased. Council policies 

Page 2



were not made in isolation and the country parks did need a certain amount of 
upkeep which could be paid for through the parking charges.

Responding to comments from Members, Steve Atkins stated that with regard 
to Wirral Country Park at Thurstaston, the only contact he had had was from 
the Park Rangers and the owner of the coffee shop but not in respect of any 
negative impact of the parking charges. With regard to visitor number 
statistics there had been approximately 146,500 transactions through the pay 
and display machines but these were not an indication of visitor numbers. It 
would be possible to undertake some visitor number surveys. There had been 
no formal assessment on the impact on businesses but there were ways and 
means to offer support to businesses.

A Member commented upon the discrepancy between some areas of Wirral, 
such as New Brighton and the Croft Retail Park not having any parking 
charges and other areas where there were charges. There was a need to 
encourage the use of public transport and for an increase in the areas 
accessible by public transport which would discourage the use of cars and be 
healthier for the environment.

Another Member referred to the need to look at the effect on businesses of 
reduced footfall from the car parking charges and that if businesses closed 
the Council would suffer a loss of business rates.

Councillor Dave Mitchell then moved –

“Committee notes that the findings reported in section 3.7 and 3.8 relate to 
firm opinions expressed at a meeting between local business owners, ward 
members and Councillor Sullivan (the then Chair of this Committee) on 11 
July, 2018.

Committee also now appreciates the diversion of parking in other locations in 
the vicinity of the country park, has continued with the impact on Ferry Road, 
increased usage of the Leverhulme Pavilion car park and locations such as 
Torr Drive, Tebay Road (and within the car park of B&M) plus Riverwood 
Road.

Committee must understand the adverse effect that this has had on the local 
businesses who add so much to the visitor economy.

Committee recommends to Cabinet that the impact on the local business 
community should now be given the same consideration as other areas where 
plans for charges were dropped due to their impact.”

The motion was not seconded.

Page 3



It was moved by Councillor Tom Usher, seconded by Councillor Jean 
Stapleton, that –

“(1) Committee notes that the considerations of residents and local 
businesses and their contribution to the local economy should be valued and 
given serious consideration in any decision.

(2) The committee notes that the country car parking charges have operated 
for a year and commits to monitoring the effects of country car parking 
charges in the coming months.

(3) Committee recommends that the  Cabinet look at ways in which the effects 
of the country car parking charges can be minimised for local businesses and 
residents. We ask that any business support be given in order to assist with 
the transition and that the highways department look at implementing 
measures to ease the effects on the roads around country parks. We also ask 
that the extension of public transport to country parks be looked at.”

It was moved as an amendment by Councillor Chris Blakeley and seconded 
by Councillor Steve Williams, that –

“This Committee notes that the introduction of parking charges at our country 
parks has had a negative impact on visitors which has had a knock effect on 
business.

This Committee notes that the loss of income if charges were scrapped could 
be recovered by ceasing the production and distribution of its newspaper, the 
Wirral View.

Therefore this Committee requests Cabinet / Council to scrap parking charges 
at Wirral’s country parks and make up the shortfall in revenue by ceasing 
production and distribution of the Wirral View to ensure our country parks can 
be accessed by all free of charge.”

The amendment was put and lost (6:7). (Councillors Bruce Berry, Chris 
Blakeley, Tony Cox, David Elderton and Steve Williams voting in favour – 
Councillor Chris Blakeley having requested that the Conservative Members’ 
votes be recorded)

The motion was put and carried (7:6).

Resolved – That –

(1) Committee notes that the considerations of residents and local 
businesses and their contribution to the local economy should be 
valued and given serious consideration in any decision.

Page 4



(2) The committee notes that the country car parking charges have 
operated for a year and commits to monitoring the effects of country 
car parking charges in the coming months.

(3) Committee recommends that the Cabinet look at ways in which the 
effects of the country car parking charges can be minimised for local 
businesses and residents. We ask that any business support be 
given in order to assist with the transition and that the highways 
department look at implementing measures to ease the effects on the 
roads around country parks. We also ask that the extension of public 
transport to country parks be looked at.

39 INVESTMENT AND CHANGE BOARD AND THE NEW COMMERCIAL 
IDEAS PANEL 

The Chair introduced Shaer Halewood, Director of Finance and Investment, 
who gave a presentation on the Investment and Change Board and the New 
Commercial Ideas Panel.

The Board had been established to:

 provide strategic and corporate oversight of all major projects
 ensure projects were coordinated and all stakeholders cited
 discuss ideas for investment and change projects at their inception to 

determine whether to progress further
 agree requests for investment 
 ensure effective decision making
 ensure reports and business cases were of the right content for Members 

to make an informed decision
 take an overall view on the Council’s exposure to risk

Previous items discussed by the Board included:

 Birkenhead Commercial District
 Wirral Waters programme
 Significant strategic acquisitions e.g. Cinema in Birkenhead and New Ferry
 Investment for new cultural activities

In response to Members’ comments Shaer Halewood stated that no additional 
staff had been employed to sit on the Board. What had been in place before 
had been fit for purpose but now the Council was involved in many more 
significantly large projects it was felt the need for more oversight and good 
governance should be put in place with the Board. Business cases had 
always been completed in their own areas but she had found the need for 
consistency in the production of business cases, particularly in relation to 
large projects, such as Wirral Waters, would be best practice and the 
introduction of this Board had enabled this.

Page 5



Philip McCourt, Director of Governance and Assurance concurred that this 
was best practice and the introduction of the Board enabled advice on 
projects to be given in one place providing greater understanding across the 
authority and a gateway for officers to seek advice in one place.

Responding to further comments Shaer Halewood stated that as the Section 
151 Officer she had a responsibility to ensure the Council’s budget was 
balanced and accurate and that it was. The Council had to go through a 
difficult and painful process to balance its budget with reduced Government 
funding and did not have any money to spare. She also explained the 
difference between capital and revenue funding and that capital funding could 
be used to buy assets but not to run services. With the very low interest rates 
currently the Council could borrow money very cheaply and assets could be 
bought to provide an income stream, which could then be used to fund the 
day-to-day running of services.

Another Member suggested the need for the wider public to be given the 
opportunity to put forward ideas through such a Board for generating and 
retaining wealth within the community.

Responding to more comments, Shaer Halewood stated that the Board would 
be looking at proposals for a potential golf resort in the borough. She also 
outlined the internal reporting mechanisms for any projects which would be 
taken forward. Some of the projects being taken forward would then appear 
on the Forward Plan and there was always the opportunity for pre-decision 
scrutiny. Projects could be considered for their social value also as the 
proposals brought forward did not have to be solely about commercial value.

A Member queried the use of acronyms in the Terms of Reference for the 
Investment and Change Board, which had been circulated to the Committee 
and suggested a key be attached listing the acronyms and their meaning. He 
also suggested that the document be placed in the public domain.

Shaer Halewood agreed to provide a list of acronyms with the Terms of 
Reference, which would be published with the minutes.

Resolved – That the presentation and comments of Members be noted.

40 BUDGET PROPOSALS SCRUTINY WORKSHOP REPORT 

A report from the Chair presented the findings of the Business Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee workshop in relation to scrutinising the 2019/20 budget 
proposals. A workshop had been held on 11 December, 2018 for Members to 
explore in more detail the four budget proposals which the Chair and Party 
Spokespersons had prioritised for further scrutiny and which fell under the 
remit of this committee. These were:

Page 6



 Benefits of Economic Regeneration
 Disposal of Marine Point Freehold 
 Asset Management – Capital Receipts 
 Treasury Management

The Committee was requested to acknowledge this report as its response to 
the 2019/2020 budget proposals to be referred on to Cabinet as part of its 
considerations in developing any budget recommendation to Council.

The workshop report had noted the key points made by both Members and 
officers in attendance. No objections to the four proposals were raised at the 
workshop. Members of the Conservative Party in attendance reiterated their 
view that the scrutiny of the budget proposals should be held in public at a 
formal committee meeting and no opinion on those proposals presented at the 
workshop was given.

The Chair commented further that unfortunately the workshop didn’t work too 
well as there was not enough time to discuss all of the information and that 
out of a number of budget proposals these had had to be whittled down to just 
four. A number of Members had not been able to make the workshop for a 
variety of reasons, including another workshop being held on the same 
evening and the workshop being called at very short notice.

Councillor Dave Mitchell asked for Councillor Allan Brame’s name to be 
recorded in the Scrutiny Report as he understood that he had attended in 
place of himself.

Responding to Members’ comments, Shaer Halewood agreed to provide a 
written response in respect of the question on Dominic House as to how long 
it had been empty, why the freehold and not the leasehold were proposed for 
sale and if there had been any expressions of interest from private or 
voluntary sectors for alternative uses for the building. With regard to a 
replacement Corporate Director for Economic and Housing Growth, she 
commented that the Corporate Director for Business Management was 
currently acting in this role and arrangements were being looked at as to how 
to replace this role.

A Member queried why the workshops did not appear in the diary and 
suggested that in future they should be full committee meetings. Another 
Member suggested that budget workshops should not be held in public.

It was then moved by the Chair and seconded by Councillor Jerry Williams, 
that –

Page 7



“(1) Committee agrees to note the report but that the wording, ‘No objections 
to these four proposals were raised at the workshop’ be removed from the 
conclusions section.

(2) The Committee felt that they were not able to give due and proper 
consideration to the matters before them at the workshop because:

 More information needs to be forthcoming in advance.
 The timetable is too short and puts too much pressure on Members and 

officers to allow full and proper scrutiny.
 Due to Members’ other commitments it meant it was impossible to make a 

full and informed analysis of the proposals before them.

(3) Committee therefore asks Cabinet to take note of the comments of the 
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee.”

Following advice from the Director of Governance and Assurance in respect 
of amendments and motions, it was then moved as an amendment by 
Councillor Chris Blakeley and seconded by Councillor Steve Williams, that –

“This Committee feels that the workshop was not able to give full and proper 
consideration to the matters before it because:

1. Not enough information was forthcoming.
2. The timetable is too short.
3. Committee does not believe a workshop held in private is right and proper 

and these important matters should be held in an open and transparent 
manner.

Committee therefore informs the Cabinet that it is unable to make any budget 
recommendations.”

The amendment was put and lost (4:8).

The motion was put and carried (7:4) (One abstention).

Resolved – 

(1) Committee agrees to note the report but that the wording, ‘No 
objections to these four proposals were raised at the workshop’ be 
removed from the conclusions section.

(2) The Committee felt that they were not able to give due and proper 
consideration to the matters before them at the workshop because:

 More information needs to be forthcoming in advance.

Page 8



 The timetable is too short and puts too much pressure on 
Members and officers to allow full and proper scrutiny.

 Due to Members’ other commitments it meant it was impossible to 
make a full and informed analysis of the proposals before them.

(3) Committee therefore asks Cabinet to take note of the comments of 
the Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

41 UPDATE ON LIVERPOOL CITY REGION DEVELOPMENTS 

Rose Boylan, Policy and Strategy Manager, introduced a report and gave a 
presentation setting out a brief overview of latest developments at the 
Liverpool City Region (LCR). A wide range of activity continued and the report 
highlighted a small extract of these, which included:

 A proposed LCR Cycling and walking network
 Year of the Environment 2019
 Inclusive Growth
 Potential implications of Brexit

Responding to comments from Members, Rose Boylan stated that Members 
would be invited to take part in workshops on inclusive growth and Shaer 
Halewood agreed to provide a figure on the cost of Wirral’s Local Community 
Wealth Building Project. With regard to Brexit, Mark Camborne, Lead 
Commissioner for Community Services and Resilience, was leading on this 
for the Council.

Rose Boylan agreed to circulate the presentation to all the Committee 
members.

Councillor Jean Stapleton reported upon her work on the Liverpool City 
Region Scrutiny Committee and two of the workshops which the Scrutiny 
Committee had held recently, including one on EU funding post Brexit and its 
impact on the LCR and one on the effectiveness of careers education. 

Resolved – That the report be noted.

42 HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC REPRESENTATION PANEL MINUTES 

The Committee were requested to note the minutes of the Highways and 
Traffic Representation Panel meeting held on 17 December, 2018 regarding a 
proposal for car parking restrictions on Memorial Drive and Archway Close, 
Tranmere.

Councillor Steve Williams, Chair of the Panel, addressed the Committee and 
referred to press reports on the matter after the Panel had met which 
suggested that the objectors who had attended the Panel were not in the 

Page 9



majority and that residents of the new estate were in favour of match day 
restrictions on parking. He proposed that officers monitor the parking issues in 
a shorter period of time than originally agreed by the Panel and that officers 
discuss the matter with the ward councillors.

Resolved – That the minutes be noted and the suggestion of Councillor 
Steve Williams be agreed.

43 BUSINESS O&S COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

The Committee considered a report from the Chair which explained the 
process of developing and managing a scrutiny work programme for the 
current municipal year. The report updated the Committee on the current 
status of items on the work programme.

An update was also provided on the Liverpool City Region Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee which had convened its first two scrutiny workshops in 
December, 2018. 

The Chair proposed that the work programme be kept as it was and that an 
item on Muse and the Wirral Growth Company would be on the agenda for 5 
March meeting.

A Member suggested the need to add a date in for the New Ferry disaster 
item on the work programme.

The Chair suggested that this matter be delegated to the Party 
Spokespersons and himself to agree a date with the Member as to when this 
would be scheduled.

In response to a comment from a Member, Philip McCourt, Director of 
Governance and Assurance reported that with regard to the Wirral Growth 
Company agreement, Muse’s Board had yet to sign this off, although they 
were due to meet by the end of the month and once they had agreement, in 
the same way that Cabinet would give approval, the agreement would come 
into effect.

Resolved – That the Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee work 
programme be approved for 2018/19, taking account of the comments 
above.

Appendix to minute 39 - Terms of Reference for Investment and Change 
Board

Page 10



Investment & Change Board (ICB)
Terms of Reference

Purpose The Investment & Change Board purpose is:
 To interpret the priorities of Senior Leadership Team 

(SLT) and Leadership ensuring appropriate investment 
(resources and/or finances)

 To develop the Investment and Change Programme and 
proactively manage progress against plan, key risks and 
spend for schemes/projects within it, enabling the Section 
151 Officer to discharge statutory responsibilities.

 To ensure alignment of investments against corporate 
priorities giving due consideration to risk.

 To communicate the expectation that strategic financial 
investment comes through the Investment and Change 
Board (ICB) in line with the business case gateway model 
and other relevant pathways

 In accordance with the Wirral Asset Strategy, to make 
informed decisions on the future use of assets ensuring 
that appropriate consideration is given to the requirements 
of all service areas within the organisation and, when 
appropriate, the full potential of capital receipts are 
realised.

 The ICB will appraise business cases for investment 
providing assurance to SLT that sound decisions are 
being made. This applies to capital, acquisition, 
programme and project related investment, change and 
contract decisions. 

 The ICB will appraise and approve Commercial 
investment decisions 

Membership Director of Finance & Investment – Shaer Halewood (CHAIR)
Corporate Director for Business Management – Paul Satoor
Corporate Director for Delivery & Assistant Chief Executive – 
David Armstrong
Director for Governance & Assurance – Philip McCourt
Assistant Director: Commercial Management - Nicola 
Butterworth
Strategic Commissioner – Environment - Mark Smith 
Strategy Lead – Rose Boylan
Head of Business Change & Programme Management – Tim 
Games
Head of Digital (Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO)) – Jeff 
Ashworth
Commercial Lead – Stuart Bellerby

Responsibilities  To ensure investment decisions are prioritised, aligned to 
strategy and that risks of investments are understood and 
documented.

 To ensure investment decisions are taken with an 
understanding of the total financial & risk exposure to the 
Council.

Page 11



 Review the project dossier, tracking status of projects and 
the benefits of investments (Programme Management 
Office (PMO) to provide reporting)

 To report on investments, benefits, risks and issues to 
SLT 

 Develop, monitor and keep under review the Council’s 
capital investment appraisal system, providing guidance 
when submitting annual bids for inclusion. 

 Development and maintenance of a forward plan of ICB 
programme and activity

 Receive exception reports from Asset and Capital Group 
(ACG) relating to the progress of schemes within the 
Capital Programme, ensuring that key risks & issues are 
managed/escalated as appropriate and that any slippage 
against key milestones and budgeted spend are managed 
effectively.  

 To optimise the use and value of property interests by 
providing assessment of growth and asset plans. 

 To provide and ensure effective oversight of the major 
development programme

 To ensure that the impact of proposed service changes / 
transformation activity is discussed, understood and 
considered in all decision making.

 Agreement and oversight of the 3/5 year Growth Plan
 Review change proposals to ensure strategic alignment 

and appropriate business capacity and capability to 
deliver

 Maintaining an overview of the business change portfolio 
and budgeted spend against the Capital Programme

 Responding to any changes made by Leadership to 
Organisational Strategy to re-plan delivery

 Identify and recommend changes to plans should there be 
opportunities to exploit synergies across the organisation, 
partnership arrangements or Liverpool City Region (LCR)

 Appraising business cases as part of business case 
gateway and recommending investment where 
appropriate

 Reviewing exception reports when a project is forecast to 
exceed tolerance levels or benefit delivery profiles 

 To receive updates on commercial and traded activity and 
agree any actions/investment to take these forward

Reporting The ICB will provide content for the monthly revenue and capital 
monitoring reports, and the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS), Investment Strategy and Capital Strategy Report prior to 
submission to the SLT.
The ICB will provide monthly activity report to SLT 
Further reporting requirements should be brought to the attention 
of this board by the Director of Law and Governance

Meetings Monthly 

Page 12



 Progress of schemes within the Capital Programme will be 
reported to ACG on an exception basis – scheme leads 
will provide updates for any schemes categorised with 
‘red’ and Amber status. 

 Submissions for savings and efficiencies as part of the 
MTFS Budgeting process and budget initiatives process 
will be agreed and where relevant added to the 
transformation programme and MTFS

  Meeting Minutes, Decisions & Actions for the group will 
be noted, ownership allocated and e-mailed to attendees 
within 5 working days following each monthly meeting.  
Owners will provide updates on actions at ACG for capital 
items the following month (or before if required).

 Agendas and associated papers for forthcoming meetings 
will be e-mailed to attendees 2 working days prior to each 
monthly meeting. 

 If members of the group wish to table specific issues for 
discussion at ICB, this should be discussed and 
supporting papers (if required) provided to the Programme 
Office by the Friday of the previous week.

 If members of the group are unable to attend monthly 
meeting/s, an update will be provided by a nominated 
deputy.

Quorum:
At least 3 Chief Officers

Review  Annual Report to SLT.
 SLT to review terms and effectiveness of Board annually.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday, 5 March 2019

REPORT TITLE: Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 
2018/19

REPORT OF: Director of Finance & Investment (S151)

REPORT SUMMARY
This report sets out the financial monitoring information for the Business Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee. The report provides Members with detail to scrutinise budget 
performance for this area of activity. The financial information is at close of quarter 3 
2018/19.

Information has been drawn from the relevant sections of the most recent Cabinet 
revenue and capital monitoring reports and combined with additional relevant 
service information to produce a bespoke report for this Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. The report includes the following:

• Performance against the revenue budget (including savings)
• Performance against the capital budget

RECOMMENDATION/S
1 That members note the report and appendices.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
1.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committees receive regular financial updates 

throughout the year. These allow Committees to understand the financial 
position of the council and to scrutinise decisions and performance as 
required.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1 Not applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The position financially at quarter 3 for the council as a whole was presented 
at cabinet on the 18th of February 2019.  The quarter 3 revenue forecast is an 
overall overspend of £0.72 million for the year. Delivery Services forecast 
overspends making up all of this.

The quarter 3 capital report recommends that Cabinet agree the 2018/19 
Capital Programme of £53.5 million which takes into account re-profiling 
identified during 2018/19. Expenditure to date is £33.3 million.

3.1.0 CHANGES TO THE AGREED BUDGET ENVIRONMENT

3.1.1 The 2018/19 Budget was agreed by Council on 5 March 2018. Any increase 
to the overall Council Budget (but not use of the existing budget contingency) 
requires agreement by full Council. The Business Theme includes activity 
from 5 Cabinet portfolios as shown in table 1 below.

Table 1: 2018/19 Original & Revised Net Budget 
Theme Portfolio Q2 

Budget
Budget 

Changes 
Q3

Revised 
Net 

Budget

£000 £000 £000
Business Finance and 

Income 
Generation

-349 -497 -846

Highways and 
Transport

39,700 -4 39,696

Jobs and 
Growth

1,107 508 1,615

Law and 
Order

4,349 -16 4,333

Leader of the 
Council

8,991 30 9,021

Net Cost of Services 53,798           21 53,819

Page 16



Budget movements in quarter three cover a number of issues. The largest of 
these is the movement of £0.5m from Finance and Income Generation to 
Jobs and Growth. This is an allocation of transformation budget for project 
work. These movements have no effect on the bottom line budget of the 
Council and are just adjustments to better reflect where budgets should be 
placed.

3.2.0 PROJECTIONS AND KEY ISSUES

3.2.1 The projected outturn position as at the end of December 2018 and Wirral 
Plan: 2020 Vision Themes updates are detailed in the following sections.

Table 2: 2018/19 Projected Budget variations 
(Under) 

Overspend
Quarter 3

Business Finance and Income 
Generation

-846 -761 85

Highways and Transport 39,696 39,971 275
Jobs and Growth 1,615 1,716 101
Law and Order 4,333 4,390 57
Leader of the Council 9,021 9,021 0

TOTAL 53,819 54,337 518

Theme Revised 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

Portfolio

Finance and Income Generation

A minor overspend in this portfolio is made up of IT services overspends 
which are netted down by underspends within Treasury management and 
Change Management.

Highways and Transport

There are two main areas of over spend in this portfolio. The first is the 
anticipated high costs for Winter Maintenance this year. Initially forecasts 
are for a harsh winter this year which will see an increased gritting 
schedule, with the associated increased costs in salt and transport. The 
second is reduced levels of expected car parking income.

Jobs and Growth

This variance is due to legal costs relating to the Wirral Waters One/Legacy 
project.

Law and Order

Community Safety is currently projected to overspend due extra staffing costs 
above budget.  There are plans to mitigate this through a community safety 
staffing review and an admin review across the Safer Wirral Hub. 

 

Page 17



3.3.0 IMPLEMENTATION OF SAVINGS

3.3.1 A summary of the position of 2018/19 Business savings at 31 December 2018 
is below.

Table 3: Savings Implementation 2018/19 (£000’s)
Portfolio Approved 

Budget 
Reduction

Amount 
Delivered 
at Q3

Mitigation To be 
Delivered

Business 5,323 5,145 0 178
Total 5,323 5,145 0 178

3.4.0 PERFORMANCE AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETS QUARTER 3 (December 
2018)

3.4.1 Capital Programme 2018/19 at end of Quarter 3 (31 December)
Capital 

Strategy
September December  Actual 

Spend
Dec 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000
Business 19,203 19,203 17,634 10,173
Total expenditure 19,203 19,203 17,634 10,173
* Break down of these figures can be found in appendix 1

3.4.2 Digital corporate storage - SCC has now been appointed as the ICT 
strategic partner who will be working to determine the best solution for the 
council.

3.4.3 Windows 10 rollout - the programme to provide all staff with the latest 
Operating System (Windows 10) and additional software to enable agile 
working is well under way. Completed in Children’s Services and 
Transformation, it is ongoing in Digital and plans have been drawn up for the 
rest of the Council.

3.4.4 Highway maintenance - the most significant areas of expenditure are in 
respect of micro asphalting (£0.89 million) and the programme of surface 
dressings (£0.48 million).

3.4.5 Sustainable Transport Enhancement Programme (STEP). Expenditure is 
focused on 2 significant schemes; Northbank East (£0.51 million) which will 
provide increased accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists to the Wirral 
Waters West Float development and increased attractiveness of the area for 
businesses and investors; The Croft Retail Corridor (£0.22 million) which will 
also improve accessibility for pedestrians and cyclists, including improved 
safety for cyclists through the provision of an off road route.

3.4.6 Transport for Growth - expenditure has been incurred on a number of 
schemes to date. The most significant are the improvements to the junction of 
the M53 and A554 (£0.575 million); cycle and footway improvements (£0.206 
million) and creating sustainable travel links at Duke Street (£0.105 million).

Page 18



3.4.7 Grant funding of £0.563 million is available to fund pothole repairs.  A further 
£420 million was announced in the Chancellor’s October budget statement; 
however the details for each authority are awaited. Dangerous potholes are 
treated as a priority for action. Efforts are directed both to repairs and 
prevention. By the end of December 70% of the original allocation has been 
spent.

3.4.8 Street lighting column upgrade/LED replacement - delays have occurred with 
the process of procuring a contractor to undertake the installation works. This 
has now been rectified and the tender will be advertised in January 2019. It is 
anticipated that the installation work will commence on 1 April 2019.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The financial implications of this report are discussed throughout the report. 
This is essentially a financial monitoring performance update report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 There are none directly relating to this report. The monitoring of financial 
performance is important to ensure robust financial control procedures are in 
place. The council faces financial challenges in this period as it seeks to 
increase income, reduce costs whilst transforming its approach to services. 
There is a risk in future years that the Council does not achieve a planned 
approach.  

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 No consultation has been carried out in relation to this report.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 This report is essentially a monitoring report which reports on financial 
performance.

REPORT AUTHOR: Christopher Kelly
Principal Accountant
telephone:  (0151) 666 3417
email:   chriskelly@wirral.gov.uk

Page 19

mailto:xxxxx@wirral.gov.uk


APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Capital Programme and Funding 2018/19

BACKGROUND PAPERS

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Budget Council
Cabinet – Revenue Monitoring 2018/19 Quarter 1
Cabinet – Capital Monitoring 2018/19 Quarter 1
Cabinet – Revenue Monitoring 2018/19 Quarter 2
Cabinet – Capital Monitoring 2018/19 Quarter 2
Cabinet – Revenue Monitoring 2018/19 Quarter 3
Cabinet – Capital Monitoring 2018/19 Quarter 3

5 March 2018
16 July 2018
16 July 2018

26 November 2018
      26 November 2018

18 February 2019

               18 February 2019

Page 20



Capital Programme and Funding 2018/19 APPENDIX 1

Business Revised 
Programme 

£000 

Spend to 
Date 
£000 

Council 
Resources 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000
Windows 10 rollout 2,272 1,286 2,272 - 2,272
Digital corporate storage 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
Data centre 169 162 169 - 169
Creative and digital team software/hardware 48 18 48 - 48
Transformation Programme EVR/VS 2,500 2,000 2,500 - 2,500
Access Wirral 250 - 250 - 250
Highway maintenance 2,637 2,204 - 2,637 2,637
BAMN Commercial Settlement 305 305 305 - 305
Pot hole action fund 563 392 - 563 563
Bridges 306 97 156 150 306
Dock bridges replacement 900 817 758 142 900
Coast protection 38 6 38 - 38
Transport for growth 2,761 1,160 1,611 1,150 2,761
BAM vehicles purchase 145 83 145 - 145
Sustainable transport (STEP) 1,512 850 887 625 1,512
Street lighting and LED replacement 349 380 349 - 349
Street lighting column 
upgrade/replacement/LED replacement 250 68 - 250 250
Car parking 3 3 3 - 3
Illuminated lighting and street signage 250 - 250 - 250
New Brighton infrastructure 250 90 250 - 250
Thermal mapping 10 - 10 - 10
Key Route Network 340 12 40 300 340

P
age 21



Business Revised 
Programme 

£000 

Spend to 
Date 
£000 

Council 
Resources 

£000
Grants 
£000

Total 
Funding 

£000
Major infrastructure development/planning 40 - 40 - 40
Highways asset management system 266 - 266 - 266
Cleveland St transport depot 20 - 20 - 20
Surface water management 60 - 60 60
West Kirby flood alleviation 180 52 84 96 180

Total 17,634 10,173 11,451 6,183 17,634

P
age 22



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
5 March 2018

REPORT TITLE ABSENCE MANAGEMENT

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF CHANGE AND 
ORGANISATIONAL DESIGN

1.0 REPORT SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides Business and Overview Committee with update on sickness 
absence levels in the organisation and how this is being managed and monitored.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION/S

2.1 Business and Overview Committee note the current position in relation to employee 
absence within the Council and the work being undertaken to address this.

3.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
3.1 To ensure that members of the Business and Overview Committee are updated on 

the current position in relation to absence levels and the Council’s approach to 
management of absence.

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 Not applicable.

5.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION
5.1 Please see appended report. 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
6.1 Please see attached report.

7.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
7.1 The Council manages employee absence in accordance with policy and procedures  

and relevant employment law.

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
8.1 No implications in this report. However, as outlined in the study attached, absence 

has an impact on staffing particularly where cover is required to maintain service 
delivery.

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



9.0 RELEVANT RISKS
There is risk to service delivery arising from employee absence and risks for 
individuals in relation to mental health and wellbeing if the appropriate support is not 
in place to support them.

10.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

10.1 None required

11.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are no direct equality implications arising from the report.  The Council 
manages absence included mental health and stress related absence, in 
accordance with its legal obligations and the Equality Act 2010.

REPORT AUTHOR: Tony Williams
Head of Human Resources 
telephone:  0151 691 8678
email:   tonywilliams@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
1) Absence Management Report

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Audit and Risk Management Committee 21 November 2017

Employment and Appointments Committee 6 March 2018

Page 24

mailto:tonywilliams@wirral.gov.uk


APPENDIX ONE

Page 1 of 13

Business and Overview Committee 
5 March 2019
Absence Management

REPORT SUMMARY

1.0 This report has been produced at the request of Business and Overview Committee and provides an 
update on absence levels in the organisation, a summary of how absence is being monitored and 
managed and the next steps in trying to reduce levels of sickness absence in the organisation. 

1.1 Managing sickness absence effectively is a top priority for the Council.  This is important in relation 
to our duty of care to our workforce, as an employer but also important in terms of finances and 
productivity: high absence levels affect the performance of services, they cost more to deliver and 
ultimately it is Wirral residents who are impacted. 

1.2 It is imperative that managers throughout the organisation follow the policies and processes which 
are in place and utilise the wider support which is available to try to ensure our workforce is are 
healthy and maintain good levels of attendance.

1.3 We have well developed management information and data on sickness absence. This has provided 
a strong evidence base for the work we have undertaken.  

1.4 It is clear that while the Council’s absence figures remain higher than we want them to be, the 
position is relatively steady and we are comparable with other local authorities in the region.  The 
level of mental health related absence in particular presents a significant and ongoing challenge for 
the Council as it does for many similar organisations across a range of sectors.  The causes are 
complex and varied and therefore there is not one intervention to manage this. The report 
discusses the approaches taken.

1.5 Absence levels across the organisation are reviewed monthly by the Senior Leadership Team.  We 
are currently mid-way through a retraining programme with line managers and have launched a 
campaign promoting staff wellbeing support with a programme of communications and specific 
interventions aimed at reducing staff absences, particularly focussing on mental health related 
illnesses. 

1.6 The council has also enhanced the HR support which is available to managers and implemented a 
new system of management reports which allows managers to quickly identify sickness issues 
within their areas. 

1.7 This report sets out a detailed study into levels of absence in the Council, and how this absence is 
being managed and monitored.  There is a particular focus on the level and management of mental 
health related absence. Key findings can be summarised as:

 The Council’s workforce is 3,200 with 2,726 ‘full time equivalent’ posts. 
 The average days lost to sickness in 2017/18 was 11.12 days per FTE and is projected at 10.97 

days for 2018/19.  
 The estimated cost of absence was £4.3m in 2017/18 

Page 25



APPENDIX ONE

Page 2 of 13

 In 2018/19, 18.8% of all workplace absence is related to mental health issues.  
 Due to the nature of mental health illness absences are often longer-term that other types of 

sickness, with 37.2% of the total days lost in 2018/19 due to staff absence being mental health 
related.  

 Analysis also indicates that for each mental health related absence an average of 35.69 days 
are lost, which is higher than all other absence expect cancer related illness. 

 The Council is proactively working across the organisation with a range of interventions 
including new management reports, increased HR support, re-training for managers and a 
workplace wellbeing launch to act positively to reduce staff absence with a focus on mental 
health related absence.

1.8 Since 2010, the Council workforce has reduced by just over 2,000 employees through a range of 
programmes including a voluntary redundancy scheme, management savings, service cuts and 
remodelling and development of alternative delivery models.  The Council’s ongoing financial 
situation has meant it continues to be a challenging and uncertain time for employees.

1.9 Our absence levels are higher than we want and so this is a priority area for the organisation.  The 
Wirral picture is in line with National findings including mental health being a major area of concern 
for organisations across a range of different sectors. In dealing with these challenges our approach 
is consistent with how other organisations are also trying to address this; and we are committed to 
doing so.

2.0 ORGANISATIONAL CONTEXT

2.1 It is important to understand the organisational context when analysing absence data.  

2.2 At 31 December 2018, the Council has 3,200 employees. The number of employees within Wirral 
Council has decreased by 2,059 since 2010.  Over this period of time Wirral has undergone service 
transformation through a range of initiatives including:

 A Voluntary Leavers Programme between December 2010 and June 2011 
 £5.5million management saving and significant service cuts in 2013/14
 A major restructure programme which oversaw staff leaving the authority both voluntarily and 

compulsorily over 2014/15
 Services have been redesigned or integrated with partners over the past two years, including 

the creation of Edsential and Wirral Evolutions and the integration of social care staff with the 
NHS.

Page 26



APPENDIX ONE

Page 3 of 13

5,259
5,010 4,920

4,511
4,168

3,498 3,412 3,239 3,200

1,025
730

264

606 473 468 327
259

338

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

Headcount
Leavers

Wirral Workforce Numbers: Headcount and Leavers

Figure 1: Wirral Workforce Numbers: Headcount and Leavers. Source: Wirral Council HR Selfserve System. 
2017/18 headcount figure and leavers correct as at 31 December 2018.

2.3 This has been an unprecedented period of change in the Council’s history and one in which the 
model for delivery of many services has changed significantly.   Whilst there is no absolute evidence 
or correlation with increased sickness absence levels, the reduction in resources and uncertainty 
has increased pressure on teams, services and individuals.

Absence levels

2.4 The Council absence figures are shown in Figure 2. In 2015/16 staff sickness absence reached the 
highest level since 2010/11 when 11.56 days per Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff member were lost 
due to sickness. In 2017/18 sickness declined to 11.12 days per FTE. The projections for 2018/18 
indicates a slight decrease to 10.97 days per FTE. 

2.5 During this period procedures for collecting sickness data have improved significantly which 
potentially has the impact of increasing the accuracy of absence recorded.

9.66 9.45 10.21 9.91 10.32
11.56

10.62 11.12 10.97

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Days lost due to staff sickness (per FTE): Wirral

Page 27



APPENDIX ONE

Page 4 of 13

Figure 2: Days lost due to staff absence in Wirral per Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff member. Source: 
Wirral Council HR Selfserve System. 2018/19 is a projected figure to end of year.

How do we compare?

2.6 The performance of the Council in comparison to other Local Authorities in the North West is 
shown in Table 1 below. These figures are published annually and so 2017/18 is the last full year 
available.

Rank Authority Name Sickness Absence

1 Tameside Council 6.80

2 Oldham Council 8.38

3 Rochdale Borough Council 9.22

4 Stockport Council 9.68

5 Wigan Council 10.25

6 Wirral Council 11.12

7 Liverpool City Council 11.13

8 Bury Council 11.38

9 Manchester City Council 12.13

10 Warrington Borough Council 12.19

11 Bolton Council 12.20

12 Salford City Council 13.10

13 Sefton Council 13.31
Table 1: Days lost (per FTE) due to sickness absence in the North West in 2017/18. Some Local Authorities 
have not submitted returns to the North West Employers therefore data is unavailable. Source: North West 
Employers.

2.7 Whilst is helpful to compare the Council’s performance with other local authorities, it should also 
be noted that each Authority has its own models of delivery including outsourcing and alternative 
delivery vehicles for many services such as waste, leisure services and social care which means the 
characteristics and demography of workforces do vary.

2.8 The CIPD Survey 2018 states that the average days lost in the public sector is around 8.5 days. The 
average for Local Authorities in the table above is 10.83 days.

Sickness Type

2.9 Figure 3 shows that in the 12 months up to 31 December 2018, the most amount of time lost was 
due to mental health with 37.2% of all absence but was the only the third biggest single reason in 
terms of number of employees off sick.

Page 28



APPENDIX ONE

Page 5 of 13

Figure 3: Of all staff with absence in past 12 months, the numbers and percentage of employees by reason 
for sickness as at 31 December 2018. Source: Wirral HR Selfserve System. 

2.10 Table 2 below shows that the actual number of employees absent with mental health issues each 
year has reduced as the headcount has reduced but has been relatively consistent as a percentage 
over a sustained period of time.  The percentage for 2018/19 is currently 8.4%, however this is the 
figure as at 31 December 2018, and is therefore expected to increase before year end. 

Year Headcount Number of staff 
with mental health 
related absence

Percentage of 
staff with mental 

health related 
absence

2010/11 5,259 533 10.1
2011/12 5,010 473 9.4
2012/13 4,920 515 10.5
2013/14 4,511 435 9.6
2014/15 4,168 372 8.9
2015/16 3,498 370 10.6
2016/17 3,412 341 10.0
2017/18 3,239 342 10.6
2018/19 3,200 270 8.4

Table 2: Number and percentage of staff with mental health related absence 2010/11 – 2018/19. Source: 
Wirral Council HR Selfserve System. 2018/18 figures correct as at 31 December 2018.

2.11 It is important to note the definition of mental health related absence for the Council. 

Page 29



APPENDIX ONE

Page 6 of 13

This consists of a number of indicators, including anxiety, bereavement, dementia, depression, 
fatigue, insomnia, manic depression/bipolar depression, nervous disorder, personal problems, 
relationship problems, shock/trauma, and stress. 

2.12 Managers record the reason for absence in accordance with what the GP has recorded on the 
employee’s Med 3 form (‘sick note’). When a sick note is not available the manager records the 
cause of absence as provided by employee.  

2.13 Further work is required in consultation with our Occupational Health provider to categorise those 
employees that are referred and assessed by OH for stress into home related stress, work related 
stress or a combination of both.  This would give us a greater insight into the issue.

2.14 Between 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 there were a total of 1,795 Wirral Council 
employees absent from work due to sickness, 348 of these people were absent due to mental 
health related conditions. This means that 19.4% of employees absent were absent due to mental 
health related conditions. 

2.15 In this same period there were 32,207 days lost due to sickness. Absence due to mental health 
related conditions represented 37.2% of the days lost in this period (11,974 days), with an average 
of 35.69 days absence for mental health related absence.  Of the 348 employees absent from work 
due to mental health related absence, 270 (77.6%) were absent due to anxiety, stress or 
depression. 

2.16 The only illness that resulted in a larger average amount of days absent than mental health related 
is cancer, which represented 86.87 days. The table below shows a breakdown of the number of 
days lost, and the average length of days that staff are absent from work, by reason for absence.

Absence Reason Number of days 
lost

Average length of time 
absent (days)

Cancer 1,658.33 86.87
Mental Health 11,974.88 35.69

Medical Procedures 2,087.10 18.54
Muscular/Skeletal (exc Back) 3,271.22 16.74

Back Issues 1,959.51 15.37

Other 6,542.92 7.59
Abdominal (inc Digestive 
Tract) 2,383.74 4.37
Ear, Nose and Throat 2,330.12 3.37
Table 3: Number of days lost by absence reason and the average length of time absent from work. 
Source: Wirral Council HR Selfserve. Figures as at January 18 to December 18.

2.17 Merseyside Local Authorities do not publish the number of days lost due to mental health related 
conditions so direct benchmarking is not available however other national sources of information 
are available.

Page 30



APPENDIX ONE

Page 7 of 13

2.18 In 2018, the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD) published an annual survey 
report in relation to absence management. This report is the findings of a survey of more than 
1,000 HR professionals.  

2.19 As in previous years, minor illness remains by far the most common cause of short-term absence 
for public sector organisations, as is the case for all sectors. However, it is notable that stress ranks 
top among public sector organisations’ top three causes of long-term absence (71% compared with 
45% of private sector services and 33% of manufacturing and production organisations). 
Workload/volume of work remains by far the most common cause of stress in the public sector 
(66% include it in the top three causes), followed by management style (40%), considerable 
organisational change/ restructuring (34%), non-work relationships/family (26%) and relationships 
at work (24%). 

2.20 The proportion of public sector organisations including mental ill health among their top causes of 
absence has also increased. While this increase has also been observed in the private and non-
profit sector, absence due to mental ill health (as well as stress) remains more common in the 
public sector. Moreover, two-thirds (67%) of public sector organisations report an increase in the 
number of reported common mental health conditions in their organisation over the last year 
(compared with 51% of the private sector). The public sector is also more likely to report that 
stress-related absence has increased (48% compared with 34% of the private sector). The CIPD 
comment that the greater prevalence of stress and mental ill health issues in the public sector is 
hard to pin down to one cause. These trends may reflect differences in the nature of work across 
sectors and the high level of public sector front-line roles, the demographics of employees, 
budgetary constraints and/or sectoral differences in organisational awareness of stress and mental 
health issues.

2.21 In 2016 Unison surveyed 2,000 council workers and published the findings in a report ‘Under 
Pressure, Underfunded and Undervalued’. The survey found that 73% of council workers reported 
rising levels of stress (an increase from two thirds in 2008), and more than half reported that stress 
at work has affected both their job performance and personal life. 

2.22 This would suggest that mental health related conditions are increasingly affecting a significant 
number of Local Authority employees nationally; this is consistent with Wirral absence levels due to 
mental health related conditions.

Cost of absence

2.23 The approximate cost of absence for 2017/18 was approximately £3.3m.  This is based on the cost 
of paying employees in full (in accordance with their terms and conditions) for days not worked.  It 
does not include cover, agency or other costs that may be incurred if an employee is absent from 
work due to sickness. The arrangements vary across the Council depending on the nature of the 
service and the urgency of cover required to deliver services.

Absence by Directorate

2.24 We can also analyse sickness by directorate.  Table 4 shows performance by each of the 
directorates within the Council 

Headcount
(FTE)

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 
(December)

Projection
Directorate Services 
include:

Adult Care and 
Health

69
(67.82) 14.49 13.15 8.01 11.00

Adult Social Care –
Quality Assurance 
contract management

Page 31



APPENDIX ONE

Page 8 of 13

Business 
Management

892
(814.67) 8.96 10.68 6.49 8.90

HR, Finance, 
Transaction Centre, 
IT Legal, Procurement 

Children’s 
Services

812
(701.27) 10.96 12.32 9.24 12.74

Children’s Social Care
Early Years
Services for schools

Delivery 
Services

1214
(918.35) 11.06 10.86 8.81 12.10

Leisure
Libraries
Parks
Highways
Regulatory

Economic and 
Housing 
Growth

78
(70.97) 4.57 9.78 3.73 5.12

Planning, 
Development
Housing 
Culture and Skills

Strategy and 
Partnerships

155
(142.99) 9.40 9.03 10.93 15.01

Public Health
Communications
Performance
Environment

Cumulative
Total
(Adjusted)

3194

(2716.06)
10.62 11.12 8.19 10.97

Table 4: day lost per FTE by Directorate 2016/17 – 2018/19 Source: Wirral Council HR Selfserve 
System

2.25 It is also possible to break down the number of days lost (per FTE) due to mental health conditions 
by Directorate.  (These figures may differ slightly from the figures for the Council overall, as the 
overall forecast is adjusted for accounts for over-reporting whereas this data does not). 

FY
 2010/11

FY
 2011/12

FY
 2012/13

FY
 2013/14

FY
 2014/15

FY
 2015/16

FY
 2016/17

FY
 2017/18

FY
 2018/19

.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00 Adult Care and 
Health

Business 
Management

Childrens' Services

Delivery Services

Economic and 
Housing Growth

Strategy and 
Partnerships

Number of days lost (perFTE) due to Mental Health conditions by Function

Figure 4: Number of days (per FTE) lost due to mental health conditions by Directorate. Source: HR 
Selfserve System. 2018/19 figures are correct at 31 December 2018.

2.26 Figure 4 shows that there has been a significant increase across all areas in mental health related 
absence since 2010/11. This is consistent with national trends discussed elsewhere in the report.

How do other organisations manage absence?

2.27 The Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development (CIPD) Absence Survey 2018 reports that 
the most common methods of managing short-term and long term absence are as follows:

Page 32



APPENDIX ONE

Page 9 of 13

Most common methods of managing short-term and long term absence (CIPD)
Short Term % of 

respondents
Council Long Term % of 

respond
ents

Council

Return to Work Interviews 80%  Return to Work 
Interviews

80% 

Providing leave for family 
circumstances eg 
emergency/carer/dependent 
leave

77%  Changes to 
working patterns 
or environment

69% 

Trigger mechanisms to review 
attendance 

76%  Case 
management 
approach

65% 

Disciplinary and or capability 
procedure for unacceptable 
absence

69%  Occupational 
Health 
Involvement

62% 

Line Manager take primary 
responsibility for managing 
sickness 

66%  Disciplinary and 
or capability 
procedure for 
unacceptable 
absence

58% 

Changes to working patterns 
or environment eg flexible 
working

69%  Trigger 
Mechanisms to 
review 
attendance

58% 

Employee Assistance 
Programme

55%  Tailored support 
for line managers 
eg Case 
conference with 
HR

58% 

Managers are trained in 
absence handling procedures 
for absence management

53%  Risk Assessment 
to aid return to 
work after long-
term absence

57% 

Tailored support for line 
managers eg Case conference 
with HR

50%  Employee 
Assistance 
Programme

55% 

Case Management Approach 
(for example involving HR/OH 
and Line Manager

47%  Restricting Sick 
Pay

46% 

Table 5: Most commonly used methods of addressing short term and long term. Source CIPD Survey 
2018

2.28 The Council’s absence policy includes a series of trigger points which mean management action 
should be considered due to concerns over an employee’s pattern of absence. The triggers are:

 3 separate periods of absence up to 3 working days within any 6 month calendar month period, 
or

 2 separate periods of absence over 3 working days within any 6 month calendar period, or
 Concerns over patterns of absence
 Long-term sickness absence is defined as a period of 20 continuous working days and is an 

absence trigger

2.29 Table 5 shows the Council’s methods and approach to managing short-term and long-term absence 
is consistent with how 670 organisations that responded to the CIPD survey are managing these 
issues.

Page 33



APPENDIX ONE

Page 10 of 13

2.30 The CIPD Absence Survey 2018 reports that the most common methods of managing stress are as 
follows:

Most Common Method of Managing Stress 
Method % of 

respondents
Council

Flexible working options/work life balance 69 
Employee Assistance Programme 63
Staff surveys/Focus Groups to identify causes 62 
Risk Assessments/Stress Audits 58 
Training for line managers to more effectively identify and manage 
stress in their team.

48 

Trained aimed at building personal resilience such as coping 
techniques, mindfulness, cognitive behavior therapy,  positive 
psychology courses

44 

Written Stress Policy/ Guidance 34 
Greater involvement of occupational health specialists 33 
Stress Management Training for the whole workforce 28 x
Changes in work organisation such as role adaptations 23 
Health and Safety Executive Management Standards 19 x
Table 6: Most commonly used methods of managing stress Source CIPD Survey 2018

2.31 Table 6 shows the Council’s methods and approach to managing stress is consistent with 405 
organisations who responded to the CIPD 2018 survey.  

2.32 We have not undertaken an organisational wide staff survey for a number of years but there have 
been a number of smaller surveys around particular themes.  This included a health and wellbeing 
survey in Children’s Services which has helped inform the workplace wellbeing strategy.

3.0 ACTION TAKEN IN RELATION TO MANAGING ABSENCE AND HEALTH AND WELLBEING

3.1 Over the past couple of years, the Council has undertaken a wide range of interventions and 
programmes to ensure that the effective management of absence and the promotion of health and 
wellbeing are an organisational priority. This has included:

Training 

3.2 Line Manager Training In January 2018, HR commenced a programme of one-on-one line manager 
training.  Designed in response to an internal audit report which raised some issues in relation to 
line managers compliance with policy and procedures and accurate recording,  this training aims to 
ensure managers have the skills and knowledge required to be proficient in use of self-serve 
system, able to access the data and management information available and to cover the managing 
attendance policy and procedure.  To date over 250 sessions have been delivered to line managers 
across the organisation. This is continuing.

3.3 Mental Health First Aid Training This two-day training has been commissioned and delivered to 32 
Managers in 2018/19 and a further two courses are planned in the next two months.  The training 
equips managers with knowledge and skills on how to identify, understand and help someone who 
may be experiencing a mental health issue.

3.4 Wirral Mind delivered a programme of around 12 sessions of stress management training to 
managers in 2017/18.

Management Information and Data

Page 34



APPENDIX ONE

Page 11 of 13

3.5 We have continually developed and improved the data available to line managers and senior 
managers in the organisation: 

 Every line manager in the organisation has immediate access on their desktop to detailed sickness 
information the individuals in their teams including whether the employee has breached policy 
triggers.

 All Directors and Senior Managers have access to absence management for their directorate and 
service areas.  A whole range of sickness reports are available via the self-serve system.

 HR Business Partners attend Departmental Management Teams to present and discuss sickness 
absence figures and trends.

 The Senior Leadership Team are provided with sickness absence data on a monthly basis broken by 
directorate.

 There is a monthly Operational Health Report to SLT which sets out latest organisational 
performance in relation to days lost per FTE and a projection for the financial year.

 A new management report has been developed for Senior Managers to monitor compliance by 
their reports with the absence policy.  This includes number of back to work interviews outstanding 
and highlights no action when absence triggers are met.  This is used at DMT level and in individual 
meetings with Directors about their service area. 

 Internal Audit routinely audit compliance against policy and also non-reporting of absence. 

HR interventions 

3.6 Some HR resources have been redirected since October 2017 to provide dedicated support on 
absence.

3.7 This has focussed primarily on driving down the number of long-term cases and improving the 
management of long-term cases as well as following up on non-compliance with policy of line 
managers to check action where employees have breached triggers or other requirements of the 
absence policy have not been recorded, for example return to work interviews.

3.8 In October 2017 there were 18 employees in the Council who had absent from work for more than 
one year.  An organisation of our size will always carry number of serious long term serious or 
complex cases.  However, our view was this was too high.  By October 2018, through the targeted 
work undertaken, this had reduced to 6 employees.  

3.9 This work has really improved the management of long-term cases and whilst it will take some time 
for this to be evidenced within absence figures, it is anticipated that this work will see a decrease in 
the number of days absent over the next 12 months.

3.10 The team have continued to proactively audit and drive compliance. The number of Return to Work 
Interviews being undertaken has increased from an average of 67.3% in 2017 to 82.7% in October 
2018.

3.11 Whilst the number of lost days to long term absence is continuing to show a reduction, a 
combination of more accurate recording through monitoring and training and an increase in short 
term absence has increased absence levels overall.  It should be noted that there has been a spike 
in Ear, Nose and Throat and Respiratory absences in the period September 2018 to December 2018

Launch of Workplace Wellbeing Strategy

3.12 Workplace wellbeing is a key priority within the Council’s People Strategy. During 2018 we held a 
series of engagement campaigns and events with employees to raise the profile of wellbeing, 

Page 35



APPENDIX ONE

Page 12 of 13

providing support and opportunities for employees to manage their wellbeing, and to address 
some key workplace wellbeing issues. These included:

Employee wellbeing pledges – in February we asked employees to make a wellbeing pledge to 
improve their wellbeing, highlighting the importance of employees taking ownership for their own 
wellbeing. 

Wellbeing events – we held a series of events that focussed on key wellbeing issues, for example, in 
we hosted ‘State of Mind’, a men’s mental health charity who delivered a talk during Mens Mental 
Health week. In October we held a menopause in workplace event and during November we held a 
number of wellbeing breakfasts focussing on stress.

Employee volunteering – we continue to raise awareness of volunteering opportunities for 
employees. In 2018 a number of SLT and senior leaders volunteered, and this has set the tone for 
the organisation. To date over 100 volunteering opportunities have been taken up.
 
Employee led activities – we have implemented an employee led activity scheme, this is a timetable 
of employee led wellbeing activities taking place across the organisation for employees to access. 
Examples include lunchtime yoga, running clubs and football sessions. 

Public Health Campaigns – throughout the year we have raised awareness of key wellbeing issues 
in line with the Public Health campaigns through internal communications.

Leadership (Wellbeing) conference – our latest conference for Senior leaders focussed on the role 
of leaders in embedding a wellbeing culture and leading by example.  

Leisure offer – we have continued to promote access to our leisure services to employees which 
offers a discounted price for gym and lifestyle services. 

4.0 NEXT STEPS

Training

4.1 The programme of line management training will continue to be delivered to completion and will 
also form part of core training for new managers.

4.2 We also plan to continue to offer Mental Health First Aid Training, targeted as appropriate to areas 
within the workforce.

4.3 Refresh and relaunch e-learning modules on stress management and stress risk assessments.

4.4 Roll out of a two-day health and safety training for managers which has been developed to replace 
the Institute Of Safety and Health's 'Managing Safely' training. The course focuses on the essentials; 
giving practical guidance for managers and signposting sources of further information. 

Programme of Health and Wellbeing Events

4.5 We will continue to roll out a programme of wellbeing events and promote health and wellbeing in 
partnership with Public Health. 

Occupational Health Contract

4.6 The Council is currently tendering for new OH provider (from April 2019) and we have included the 
requirement to promote and deliver and health and wellbeing events within the specification and 

Page 36



APPENDIX ONE

Page 13 of 13

also a requirement for the new provider to provide the tools embrace latest technology to interact 
and communicate with the workforce in promote healthy lifestyles.

Management of Short-Term absence/System Developments

4.7 From February 2019, the HR system will automatically send email alerts to managers if an 
employee who reports to them has breached a trigger in the absence policy, if have not recorded 
that a return to work interview has been undertaken or when a manager reporting to them has 
entered an employee absence late.  These alerts will automatically escalate to the manager’s line 
manager if no action is taken within one week.

4.8 As well as reminding managers of their responsibilities for complying with the policy, these 
measures will support senior managers to manage short term absence which is an area we need to 
improve and will allow them to more easily monitor the performance of their managers.

Policy Review

4.9 The Council’s attendance management policy (and triggers) is due for review in 2019.  The review 
will include a benchmark of best practice from other organisation’s policies.

Audit 

4.10 The Council’s Internal Audit service will continue to regularly audit compliance with the absence 
policy and process. This has led to significant improvement in practice over the last couple of years.

5.0 CONCLUSION

5.1 This report sets out the current position in relation to sickness absence within the Council.  It shows 
that a significant amount of work continues to be undertaken and improvement in this area is a 
priority.  The benchmarking information and research from outside the organisation demonstrates 
that the Council is facing the same challenge as many large organisations, particularly in the public 
sector and specifically in relation to levels of mental health and wellbeing.

5.2 The Council’s People Strategy includes a clear commitment to a healthy workforce and this was the 
theme for the last Leadership Conference for senior managers in January. This was opened by the 
Chief Executive and a clear message that senior leaders are expected to role model and lead this 
agenda in the organisation 

References

Chartered Institute of Professional Development Annual Survey, 2018:
https://www.cipd.co.uk/knowledge/culture/well-being/health-well-being-work

Unison Survey, 2016:
http://www.hse.gov.uk/statistics/causdis/stress/stress.pdf

Office for National Statistics Employment and Labour Market, 2016: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/dat
asets/sicknessabsenceinthelabourmarket

Page 37

https://www.cipd.co.uk/knowledge/culture/well-being/health-well-being-work
http://www.hse.gov.uk/statistics/causdis/stress/stress.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/datasets/sicknessabsenceinthelabourmarket
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/datasets/sicknessabsenceinthelabourmarket


This page is intentionally left blank



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday, 5 March 2019

REPORT TITLE: 2018/19 Quarter 3 Wirral Plan 
Performance

REPORT OF: Corporate Director for Business 
Management

REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides the 2018/19 Quarter 3 (October - December 2018) performance 
report for the Wirral Plan pledges under the remit of the Business Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. The report, which is included as Appendix 1, provides an 
overview of progress in Quarter 3 as well as providing available data in relation to a 
range of outcome indicators and supporting measures.

Quarter Three Wirral Plan Performance Summary

 The number of jobs created remains healthy with business support 
interventions effectively working to safeguard jobs and continued recruitment 
of jobs for growth. The employment rate has been retained above 74% for the 
second successive quarter.

 The European funded Ways to Work Programme reached a significant 
milestone in Q3 having supported over 5,000 residents since April 2016 with 
over half of those engaged securing employment or training.

 There has been a significant improvement in workforce skills with a reduction 
in the skills gap to 11%. This is the fourth consecutive improvement in 
Employer Skills Surveys since 2011 and Wirral also has the lowest skills gap 
in the Liverpool City Region bar St. Helens. 

 There has been a continued focus on business growth with Wirral Chamber 
providing support to over 200 businesses this financial year and supporting 
over 80 new business starts.

 Cabinet approval is in place to invest nearly £1.3m to support New Ferry, 
bringing key land and properties under Council control in support 
regeneration and recovery. 

 Imagine Wirral 2018 has now concluded with an estimated 250,000 visitors 
and total of £4m generated for the local economy through its events 
programme. Success has established credibility for Wirral as an attractive 
proposition which will support work to secure partnership and sponsorship 
packages linked to the Borough of Culture programme in 2019 and in future 
years.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



 Wirral hotel occupancy was 80.6% in 2018. This is an increase of 3.7% on the 
baseline of 77.75% and is on track to achieve the targeted increase of 5% by 
2020.

 Annual condition surveys have highlighted that our network has deteriorated 
over the last 12 months and Wirral has received additional general highways 
maintenance funding of £1,465,000 plus an additional £315,000 for works on 
our key route network to address the deterioration.  

 The current position at Q3 indicates an overall positive reduction in KSI 
casualties compared to previous years. The deployment of a wide range of 
initiatives including safety engineering schemes, educational/engagement 
events for motorcycle, bicycles and taxi use are having an impact, improving 
safety on our roads.

 Increased introduction of cycle counters has enabled wider coverage of 
routes monitored and developed a more holistic understanding of cycling on 
the network and growth in cycling. There has been a steady increase in cycle 
usage in from 2016 with a substantial increase during the hot summer of 
2018. This growth is in comparison to a decrease in usage across the city 
region, except in Knowsley.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the content of the report 
and highlight any areas requiring further clarification or action. 

Page 40



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
1.1 To ensure Members of the Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee have 

the opportunity to scrutinise the performance of the Council and partners in 
relation to delivering the Wirral Plan.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1 This report has been developed in line with the approved performance 

management framework for the Wirral Plan.  As such, no other options were 
considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Wirral Plan is an outcome-focussed, partnership plan which has 18 
supporting strategies that set out how each of the 20 pledges will be 
delivered.  For each pledge, a partnership group has been established to 
drive forward delivery of the action plans set out in each of the supporting 
strategies.

3.2 A Wirral Plan Performance Management Framework has been developed to 
ensure robust monitoring arrangements are in place.  The Wirral Partnership 
has a robust approach to performance management to ensure all activity is 
regularly monitored and reviewed. 

3.3 Data for the identified indicators is released at different times during the year.  
As a result of this, not all Pledges will have results each quarterly reporting 
period. Some indicators can be reported quarterly and some only on an 
annual basis.  Annual figures are reported in the quarter they become 
available against the 2018/19 year end column.

3.4 For each of the indicators, a trend is shown (better, same or worse).  In most 
cases, this is determined by comparing the latest data with the previous 
reporting period i.e. 2017/18 year end.  In some cases, i.e. where data 
accumulates during the year or is subject to seasonal fluctuations, the trend is 
shown against the same time the previous year.  This is indicated in the key 
at the end of the report.

3.5 For some indicators, targets have been set. Where this is the case, a RAGB 
(red, amber, green, blue) rating is provided against the target and tolerance 
levels set at the start of the reporting period, with blue indicating performance 
targets being exceeded.

3.6 All Wirral Plan performance reports are published on the performance page of 
the Council’s website.  This includes the high-level Wirral Plan overview 
report and the detailed pledge reports which include updates on progress on 
all activities set out in the supporting strategy action plans.  The link to this 
web page is: https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/council-performance

Page 41

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/council-performance


3.7 Each of the Wirral Plan Pledges has a Lead Commissioner responsible for 
overseeing effective delivery.  The Lead Commissioners for the Pledges in 
the report at Appendix 1 are as follows:

 Greater job opportunities in Wirral – Alan Evans
 Workforce skills match business needs – Alan Evans
 Increase Inward Investment – Alan Evans
 Thriving small businesses – Alan Evans
 Vibrant Tourism Economy – Alan Evans
 Transport and technology infrastructure fit for the future – Mark Smith
 Assets and buildings are fit for purpose for Wirral’s businesses – Alan 

Evans

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
There are none arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The performance management framework is aligned to the Council’s risk 
management strategy and both are regularly reviewed as part of corporate 
management processes.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The priorities in the Wirral Plan pledges were informed by a range of 
consultations carried out in 2015 and 2016 including the Wirral resident 
survey.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The Wirral Plan equality impact assessment can be found at:
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-
assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief

REPORT AUTHOR: Nancy Clarkson
Head of Intelligence
telephone: (0151) 691 8258
email:   nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Page 42

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2014-15/chief
mailto:nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk


APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Wirral Plan Business Committee 2018/19 Quarter 3 Pledge Reports

REFERENCE MATERIAL
N/A

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 September 2016

29 November 2016

29 March 2017

4 July 2017

19 September 2017

29 November 2017

27 March 2018

4 July 2018

18 September 2018

28 November 2018

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Wirral Plan 2020

Wirral Plan Business Theme

2018-19 Quarter 3 Reports

Appendix 1

P
age 45



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19 

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Increase the number of jobs 

created and safeguarded 

(via Wirral Chamber Data 

Reporting)

Quarterly

Higher is 

better

970.0

(2014-15)

3,122.0

(2015-18)

Red

Actual: 46.5

Target: 140.0

(Apr-Jun 2018)

Blue

Actual: 419.5

Target: 280.0

(Apr-Sep 2018)

Blue

Actual: 632.5

Target: 420.0

(Apr-Dec 2018)

Better
Performance remains healthy with business support interventions capturing safeguarding 

outcomes (representing 50 of the total) and continued recruitment of jobs for growth.

Increase the employment 

rate in Wirral

Quarterly

Higher is 

better

66.7

(2014-15)

England: 75.3 (Oct 2017-

Sep 2018)

North West: 73.8 (Oct 

2017-Sep 2018)

72.6

(Jan 17-Dec 

17)

73.8

(Q1 2018-19)

74.8

(Q2 2018-19)

74.2

(Q3 2018-19)
Better

Performance, as reported by National Survey Data, has dropped 0.6 percentage point since 

the last quarter, however remains at an all time high above 74%.

Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19
Trend Comment

Percentage of working age 

people claiming out-of-work 

benefits (economic in-

activity)

Quarterly

Lower is better
(n/a)

North West: 10.10% 

(Nov 2016)

13.46%

(Q1 2018-19)

13.10%

(Q2 2018-19)
13.57% Worse

This proxy figure has been calculated using the latest benefit datasets available. Elements of 

this dataset are calculated using Universal Credit data - as Universal Credit Full Service is 

rolled out in particular areas, the number of people recorded as being on the Claimant Count 

is therefore likely to rise. The national indicator set is still subject to change due to a current 

DWP consultation on the production of out of work benefit statistics. This consultation closed 

in July 18 and findings and a new methodology are due to be detailed in early 2019.

Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19 

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Reduce the Employer Skills 

Gap in Wirral

Annual

Lower is better

15.0%

(2015)

11.0%

(2017)
Better

This indicator shows results from the bi-annual Skills Survey. 2017 outcome released with 

corrections in October 2018. The Employer Skills Survey 2017 found that 11% of Wirral 

establishments reported skills gaps within their workforce. Not only does this show a 

reduction and therefore improvement over each of the four Employer Skills Surveys since 

2011, Wirral also has the lowest skills gap percentage across the Liverpool City Region bar 

St. Helens. No further information is forecast for future publications but it is likely that the next 

series will be due for release in 2020, referencing the 2019 data capture.

Delivery of the Growth Plan continues to progress well with a full schedule of planned activities to support growth.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Key activity highlights for Quarter 3 include:                                                                                          

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

EMPLOYMENT: The European funded Ways to Work Programme reaching a significant milestone having supported over 5,000 residents since April 2016 with over half of those engaged securing employment or training so far. 

WORKFORCE SKILLS: A significant improvement in the key performance indicator for workforce skills in Wirral, with the National Employer Skills Survey finding that Wirral businesses reported some of the lowest levels of skills gaps in the City Region. 

INVESTMENT: Cabinet approval to invest nearly £1.3m to support New Ferry, bringing key land and properties under Council control in support regeneration and recovery. 

BUSINESS: A continued focus on business growth with Wirral Chamber providing support to over 200 businesses so far this financial year and supporting over 80 new business starts.

Workforce skills match business needs

Growth Plan

Greater job opportunities in Wirral

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

P
age 46



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19 

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Total investment secured 

into Wirral developments

Annual

Higher is 

better

£38,044,660

(2014-15)

£147,533,345

(2017-18)
n/a 2018/19 data will be available May 2019.

Gross Value Added per 

head of population

Annual

Higher is 

better

£12,482

(Jan-Dec 2013)

England: £27,060 (Jan - 

Dec 2016)

North West: £22,899 

(Jan - Dec 2016)

£15,051

(Jan-Dec 

2016)

£15,164

(Jan-Dec 2017)
Better

This annual indicator reveals a 0.8% improvement on last years  outturn figure as reported in 

2017..

Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19 

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Deliver a net additional 250 

new businesses over the life 

of this Plan

Annual

Higher is 

better

7,400

(2014-15)

8,705

(2017-18)
n/a Report at Year End.

Increase inward investment

Thriving small businesses

P
age 47



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19 

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Increase visitor numbers 

each year based on the 

2014 baseline (m)

Annual

Higher is 

better

7.59

(Jan-Dec 2014)

8.50

(Jan-Dec 

2016)

8.79

(Jan-Dec 2017)
Better

Performance for 2017 has confirmed that total visitor numbers have increased in Wirral by an 

average of 5.3% p.a. since 2014. This data comes from Global Tourism Solutions via the 

Local Enterprise Partnership.  It is based on the STEAM model which quantifies the local 

economic impact of tourism, from both staying and day visitors using a range of visitor 

economy measures.

Increase value of tourism 

economy by at least 5% 

each year (£m).

Annual

Higher is 

better

£355.00

(Jan-Dec 2014)

£402.40

(Jan-Dec 

2016)

Green

Actual: £426.35

Target: £411.49

(Jan-Dec 2017)

Better

Performance for 2017 has confirmed an average increase of 6.6% p.a. since 2014.  This data 

comes from Global Tourism Solutions via the Local Enterprise Partnership.  It is based on the 

STEAM model which quantifies the local economic impact of tourism, from both staying and 

day visitors using a range of visitor economy measures.

Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19
Trend Comment

Increase overnight stays & 

hotel occupancy by 5% by 

2020 based on the 2016 

baseline

Annual

Higher is 

better

77.75%

(Jan-Dec 2016)

77.62%

(2017)

80.60%

(2018)
Better

Wirral hotel occupancy was 80.6% in 2018. This is an increase of 3.7% on the baseline of 

77.75%, and therefore on track to achieve the increase of 5% by 2020.

Increase the numbers of 

Wirral Visitor Economy 

Network members

Annual

Higher is 

better

85

(Jan-Dec 2016)

73

(2017)

88

(2018)
Better

The WVEN (Wirral Visitor Economy Network) now has 88 members, which is an increase of 

3.5% on the baseline and an increase of 20% on last year.

Vibrant tourism economy

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

Through the delivery of the actions within the Wirral Visitor Economy Strategy with partners, progress has been made in Quarter 3 to achieve the Vibrant Tourism Economy pledge, which is a key element of the Wirral Growth Plan. 

The development of a three-year Destination Marketing Strategy is nearing completion, overseen by Wirral Council and Wirral Chamber collaboratively. Consultation with key stakeholders is currently being carried out, including those within the WVEB (Wirral Visitor Economy Board) and the WVEN 

(Wirral Visitor Economy Network). An outline business case has also been submitted by the LCR LEP (Liverpool City Region Local Enterprise Partnership) to the SIF (Strategic Investment Fund) for a city region Destination Marketing bid on behalf of city region partners. This would provide additional 

support to the delivery of the Wirral Destination Marketing Strategy.

The Wirral Visitor Economy Board (WVEB) is now meeting regularly chaired independently by Paul Askew - locally acclaimed chef from The Art School Restaurant. The WVEB is making significant progress in driving forward the key actions of the Wirral Visitor Economy Strategy. 

The WVEN (Wirral Visitor Economy Network) now has 88 members, which is an increase of 3.5% on the baseline.

Wirral hotel occupancy was 80.6% in 2018. This is an increase of 3.7% on the baseline of 77.75%, and therefore on track to achieve the increase of 5% by 2020.

The Wirral Accommodation & Conference Study, commissioned by Wirral council, is now complete and the acceleration plan is currently being reviewed internally. The insight and recommended actions from this are being reviewed in order to enhance and expand the accommodation and conference 

offer in Wirral. 

Imagine Wirral 2018 has now concluded with an estimated 250,000 visitors and total of over £5m generated for the local economy through its events programme. Success of the events has established credibility for the programme and for Wirral Council as an attractive proposition in securing partnership 

and sponsorship packages linked to the Borough of Culture programme in 2019, and in future years. These packages are currently being developed for the 2019 programme in partnership with the Commercialisation Team and Wirral Chamber of Commerce.                                                                                                                                             

A full review of the Visit Wirral website is currently being undertaken with a view to enhance the user experience and achieve increased traffic. Twitter followers are at 13.5k, Facebook likes are over 1300 and Instagram has over 1000 followers.

P
age 48



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19 

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

Increased the volume 

percentage of people 

cycling

Annual

Higher is 

better

0%

(index for 2013-

14)

11%

(2016-17)

59%

(2017-18)
Better

Wirral Council has introduced more cycle counters within the borough which has enabled the 

council to widen the coverage of routes monitored. These sites have helped to develop a 

more holistic understanding of cycling on the network and growth in cycling. The increase 

recorded in cycle usage is constant with the growth demonstrated on a month by month basis 

in 2016 and 2017. However, the increase was most substantial during this year’s hot summer 

months. This growth is in comparison to a decrease in usage across the city region, except in 

Knowsley..

Reduce the number of 

people killed or seriously 

injured in road traffic 

accidents

Quarterly

Lower is better

140

(2014-15)

English Metropolitan 

Authorities: 107 (2013-

15)

North West: 90 (2013-

15)

127

(2017-18)

22

(Jan-Mar 2018)

46

(Jan-Jun 2018)

69

(Jan-Sep 2018)
Better

We have continued to develop and implement a wide range of initiatives including the 

progression of safety engineering schemes together with educational/engagement events 

such as regular motorcycle safety engagements and Bikesafe workshops,. Using an 

additional grant from the Road Safety Trust we are developing new road safety initiatives 

aimed at improving safety for taxi use and also aimed at small businesses that utilise vans. 

There have been some issues with police systems passing collision data to the Council, 

these are known and measures have been taken to address the issue, however the amended 

datasets show revised quarterly KSI casualty figures for Q1 and Q2. The current position at 

Q3 indicates an overall positive reduction in KSI casualties compared to previous years. All 

KSI casualty totals are provisional until final verification with Merseyside Police during Q4. 

Further benchmarking data not yet available

Maintain the condition of 

Wirral’s strategic network – 

Principal Roads

Annual

Lower is better

1.40%

(2014-15)

English Metropolitan 

Authorities: 4.00% (2015-

16)

North West: 4.00% 

(2015-16)

1.30%

(2016-17)

1.90%

(2017-18)
Worse

The deterioration in the condition of the principal road network is as a result of the impact of 

last winter’s highway gritting operations and the effects of freeze and thaw from salting. 

Additional funding has been provided by the DfT and the Liverpool City Region to undertake 

repairs in the financial year 2019/20. 

Condition surveys to be undertaken by Merseytravel in 2019 with data available at the latest 

November 2019..

Maintain the condition of 

Wirral’s strategic network – 

Non-principal Roads

Annual

Lower is better

2.20%

(2014-15)

English Metropolitan 

Authorities: 5.00% (2015-

16)

North West: 6.00% 

(2015-16)

1.30%

(2016-17)

1.65%

(2017-18)
Worse

The deterioration in the condition of the non- principal road network is also as a result of the 

impact of last winter’s highway gritting operations and the effects of freeze and thaw from 

salting.  Additional funding from the DfT and Council maintenance funding will be used to 

undertake repairs from April 2019. Next available data November 2019..

Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19
Trend Comment

% levels of satisfaction 

overall with transport and 

highway services.

Annual

Higher is 

better

56.7%

(2015)

National Highways and 

Transport Survey: 54.0% 

(2017)

56.0%

(2017)

54.0%

(2018)
Worse

Although the percentage has decreased from last year, satisfaction levels in Wirral are still 

slightly above the national average which is 53%.  The NHT survey was sent to a sample of 

3300 households with 770 responses (23%).

Increase levels of public 

satisfaction with public 

transport

Annual

Higher is 

better

64%

(2015)

National Highways and 

Transport Survey: 61% 

(2017)

63%

(2017)

64%

(2018)
Better

This indicator reflects all public transport modes; train, bus and ferry. Wirral has higher levels 

of public satisfaction than the national average of 61%.

Increase levels of public 

satisfaction with 

walking/cycling facilities

Annual

Higher is 

better

56%

(2015)

National Highways and 

Transport Survey: 55% 

(2017)

55%

(2017)

52%

(2018)
Worse

This percentage has decreased from last year and is lower than the national average of 54%.  

This is disappointing given that there has been significant investment in infrastructure to 

support active travel..

Travel Training – Number of  

successfully travel trained 

young people (Integrated 

Transport)

Annual

Higher is 

better

26

(2014-15 Acad 

Year)

23

(2017-18 Acad 

Year)

n/a Data available end of academic year.

During Quarter 3 we completed a public consultation exercise for our Tower Road Streetscape project.    Tower Road is a major focus for jobs, investment and education as part of Wirral Waters, and with over £2 million secured from the Department of Transport, this project will enable us to create a 

distinctive streetscape that will improve health and well-being by encouraging walking and cycling and the use of public transport.  Feedback from the consultation was overwhelmingly positive and we will now move forward to finalise designs before undertaking a second consultation exercise in the 

Spring.  

Prior to Christmas we closed the consultation regarding electric vehicle charging points.   Over 500 residents responded to the survey and responses are currently being analysed to include as part of the evidence required to be submitted to bid for Government funding to trial on-street residential 

charging facilities.  

Following bad weather in early 2018, the impact of highway gritting operations has taken its toll on our highways and annual condition surveys have highlighted that our network has deteriorated over the last 12 months.    Due to the impact of the bad winter I am pleased to say that Wirral has received 

additional general highways maintenance funding of £1,465,000 plus an additional £315,000 for works on our key route network.  

Looking forward to next quarter we will complete the procurement exercise to be appoint contractors to delivery our £5.95 million capital investment in our street lighting assets.  This work will enable the replacement of 27,000 lights over a 3 year period and it is anticipated that this work will commence in 

April 2019.

Transport and technology infrastructure fit for the future

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

P
age 49



Wirral Plan Indicator Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19 

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19

Trend

(See 

Key)

Comment

£m Income generation from 

investment properties and 

underperforming space

Annual

Higher is 

better

£1.6

(2015-16)

£1.6

(2017-18)
n/a This is an annual indicator that will report at year end.

£m Capital Receipts 

generated by the disposal 

of Wirral Council's surplus 

assets

Annual

Higher is 

better

£1.28

(2015-16)

£2.82

(2017-18)
n/a This is an annual indicator that will report at year end.

Commercial asset space 

available for release (m2)

Annual

Higher is 

better

5,711

(2015-16)

31,203

(2017-18)
n/a This is an annual indicator that will report at year end.

Supporting Measure Indicator 
Wirral Plan 

Start
Benchmark Data

Year End

2017-18

2018-19

Q1

2018-19 

Q2

2018-19 

Q3

2018-19 

Q4

Year End

2018-19
Trend Comment

Reduction in Wirral 

Council's corporate 

emissions of carbon dioxide 

(CO2) due to energy use 

(tonnes)

Annual

Lower is better

31,999

(2013-14)

28,106

(2016-17)

Green

Actual: 26,463

Target: 30,173

(2017-18)

Better

Corporate performance over the 2017/18 financial year has exceeded the 2017/18 emissions 

target by 12.3%.

To date, we have reduced emissions of CO2 by 19,018 tonnes from a 2008/09 baseline of 

45,481 tonnes, a reduction of 41.8% over 8 operational years. The year-on-year reduction is 

5.85%.  

Next annual update due September 2019.

Number of multi-use of 

assets through shared / 

alternative use

Annual

Higher is 

better

4

(as at April 

2016)

12

(as at March 

2018)

n/a This is an annual measure that will report at year end.

Report Key

Trend - Performance is shown as Better, Same or Worse compared with the last reporting period except for Increase the number of jobs created and safeguarded (via Wirral Chamber Data Reporting), Increase the employment rate in Wirral and Number of People Killed or Seriously 

Injured which is compared with same period the previous year.

Target - Where targets apply, these are shown as either Blue, Green, Amber, Red based on the agreed tolerance range for individual measures.

Action - These are shown as either:

• Green (on track to deliver on time)

• Amber (off track but action being taken to deliver on time)

• Red (off track and won’t deliver on time)

Assets and buildings are fit for purpose for Wirral’s  businesses

Overview from Lead Cabinet Member

2018/19 is a significant period for the Wirral Partnership with strong asset management being key to the future stability of the Borough as a whole. Whilst the establishment of the Wirral Growth Company is key, other asset decisions are being explored for Commercial benefit, including a number of 

strategic acquisitions. Good progress is being made towards the Capital Receipt target for assets no longer required by the Council either for service delivery or commercial benefit. The Asset Strategy is increasingly important to other pledges such as Housing, Leisure, Culture Regeneration and 

Economic Development and great efforts are being made to ensure that good meaningful dialogue and sound asset advice is being shared with other pledge leaders. Greater collaboration with health and care partners is also being actively explored to ensure asset strategies are aligned for the benefit of 

all Wirral residents.

P
age 50



1

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 MARCH 2019    

REPORT TITLE Update on Liverpool City Region developments

REPORT OF Rose Boylan, Policy & Strategy Manager

REPORT SUMMARY

This report sets out a brief overview of latest developments at the Liverpool City Region 
(LCR), including activity underway to implement the City Region devolution deal.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

This is not a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION/S

Committee is requested to note and comment on latest developments.

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
Committee have requested regular updates and consideration of City Region 
developments. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1  N/a

3.0 LATEST DEVELOPMENTS 
A wide range of activity continues, of which the following is just a small extract. 

3.1 Combined Authority review of progress and upcoming priorities 
The Combined Authority recently considered a review of progress so far, and future 
priorities to be delivered as part of the ambitious programme of LCR initiatives aiming to 
create inclusive economic growth. These priorities build upon commitments made in the 
devolution agreement with government and to ensure that the City Region gets maximum 
benefit from those resources and powers that have been devolved to it.

3.2 Headline Achievements
Since the Metro Mayor’s election in May 2017 the Combined Authority and local council 
leaders have increased focus on delivering a number of these ambitions including: 

a) providing £400m in funding for economic development projects across the city 
region, creating 9,000 jobs and 5,500 apprentices;

b) creating a Strategic Investment Fund that will provide an additional £500m in 
funding for the City Region over the next five years;

c) introducing half price bus travel for all apprentices under the age of 25;
d) investing £8.3m in the first phase of a 372 mile walking and cycling network;
e) progressing the introduction of new publicly owned trains onto the Mersey Rail 

network by 2021;
f) providing £6m for a Mayoral Town Centre Fund to support local high streets across 

the City Region;
g) forming the Mersey Tidal Power Commission to oversee the potential creation of 

sustainable energy solution that harness the power of the River Mersey;
h) establishing a City Region-wide task force to tackle poor air quality;
i) creating a Fairness and Social Advisory Board to ensure that social justice and 

social value is hard wired into policy making; 
j) ensuring that the Liverpool City Region became the first Combined Authority in the 

country accredited as a Real Living Wage employer.

In addition, the Liverpool City Region has secured over £183m in additional funding from 
Government, including: 

 £172m Transforming Cities Fund 
 £7.7m for a housing first approach to tackling homelessness 
 £2.1m Homelessness Trailblazer Funding 
 £2m from the Mayoral Capacity Fund 

Page 52



3

3.3 Upcoming priorities
The aim is to use this funding to build on progress so far, and achieve further delivery. Key 
priorities for the coming months aim to: 

a) deliver a £1 Fast Tag for City Region residents and a freeze in the Mersey tunnel 
cash toll for all users; 

b) invest in digital infrastructure to ensure that all parts of the City Region benefit from 
fastest broadband speeds in the UK; 

c) make use of new Mayoral powers with respect to the bus network to ensure that 
bus services in the City Region work for the benefit of bus users and the wider 
economy; 

d) take forward the procurement of a new generation of Mersey Ferries; 
e) build a new smart ticketing system that will build upon, and eventually replace the 

current Walrus platform; 
f) develop a Mayoral Transport Plan that will seek to ease congestion, improve air 

quality and increase connectivity; 
g) increase investment in cycling and walking; 
h) introduce a City Region apprenticeship portal that will make it easier for those 

seeking apprenticeships to access employment opportunities; and 
i) take forward the development of the Liverpool City Region Spatial Framework. 

3.4 LCR Culture

As previously reported, the Liverpool City Region is focusing on Culture and the visitor 
economy as a key priority. This is illustrated by a number of major initiatives including:

a) One percent for culture – to celebrate and support LCR cultural assets and the 
benefits they bring to the people in our communities, Liverpool City Region is the first in 
the country to commit to spending the equivalent of 1% of its annual £30 million devolution 
funding from government to support cultural activities. The last year saw significant 
support including £5 million to support Liverpool 2018, the celebration of the 10th 
anniversary of Liverpool’s tenure as European Capital of Culture, and a full programme of 
events, including China Dream, Three Festivals Tall Ships Regatta, the finale of the 
Clipper Round the World Yacht Race and the return of the Giants, for which 1.5 million 
people descended on the city region.

b) LCR Borough of Culture 

As part of the 1% for Culture Programme, the Combined Authority has invested £200,000 
to support an annual Borough of Culture programme, celebrating the things that make 
each of the 6 LCR boroughs unique. The Borough of Culture title will be awarded to all of 
the Combined Authority’s constituent local authorities on a rotating basis.

Wirral holds the title of Borough of Culture for 2019. Further details can be found here

www.imaginewirral.com/wirral-2019 and highlights include:

Page 53

http://www.imaginewirral.com/wirral-2019


4

Animated Square taking place in March, an exhibition about Wirral’s contribution to 
maritime exploration; a summer of art in parks and urban spaces, and a series of events 
linked to the moon and stars, along with returning favourites the Mersey River Festival and 
River of Light.

Conclusion
Further updates on all of the above will be brought back to this Committee as further detail 
emerges in the coming months. As previously stated, the above is just a short snapshot of 
LCR activity, and further detail on all of the most recent developments can be found here 
http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/

4.0      FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
a) The Devolution arrangements propose the devolution of financial resources to LCR.

b) At its Budget setting meeting in February, the Combined Authority agreed to funding 
costs associated with the exercise of Mayoral responsibilities of £7.675m through the 
establishment of a Mayoral Precept in 2019/20 distributed between households on the 
basis set out below.
The distribution of households within the City Region is such that the overwhelming 
majority of households will pay £12.67 for a Band A property or £14.78 for a Band B 
property before any discounts are applied. Table 1 below shows the proposed charges for 
each property band.

Table 1: Mayoral Precept by Council Tax Band 2019/20
Band Charge £

Band A 12.67
Band B 14.78
Band C 16.89
Band D 19.00
Band E 23.22
Band F 27.44
Band G 31.67
Band H 38.00

5.0     LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
N/a

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

See section 4 for LCR Budget considerations 

7.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
Wirral, along with City Region partners, continues to brief members and officers; circulate 
information and raise awareness of LCR developments through a wide range of 
approaches and communications. 

Page 54

http://liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/


5

8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct equality implications associated with this report as it deals with the 
issue of devolution at a strategic level. Equality analysis will be carried out as part of the 
detailed implementation as appropriate.

REPORT AUTHOR: Rose Boylan, Policy and Strategy Manager
0151 691 8037
rosemaryboylan@wirral.gov.uk

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
P&P Regeneration & Environment Committee
P&P Regeneration & Environment Committee
Council
Cabinet 
Council
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee

18 January 2016
2 March 2016
13 September 2016
14 November 2016
8 December 2016
6 December 2016
24 January 2017
29 March 2017
4 July 2017
19 September 2017
29 November 2017
23 January 2018
27th March 2018
4th July 2018
September 2018
November 2018
January 2019

Page 55

mailto:rosemaryboylan@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee
5th March 2019

REPORT TITLE: Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
- Work Programme Update

REPORT OF: The Chair of the Committee

REPORT SUMMARY
This report explains the process of developing and managing the scrutiny work 
programme for the municipal year. The Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee, in 
cooperation with the other three Overview & Scrutiny Committees, is responsible for 
proposing and delivering an annual scrutiny work programme. This work programme 
should align with the corporate priorities of the Council, in particular the delivery of 
the Wirral Plan pledges which are within the remit of the Committee. 
   

RECOMMENDATION/S
Members are requested to:

1. Note the Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee work programme for 
2018/19.

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure members of the Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee have 
the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Not Applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND THE WIRRAL PLAN  
The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its 
partners. The programme will be informed by:

 The Wirral Plan pledges
 The Council’s transformation programme
 The Council’s Forward Plan
 Service performance information
 Risk management information
 Public or service user feedback
 Referrals from Cabinet / Council

The Wirral Plan pledges and strategies of particular relevance to the Business 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee are:

Pledge Plans & Strategies
Greater job opportunities in 
Wirral

Wirral Growth Plan

Workforce skills match 
business need

Wirral Growth Plan
Skills Strategy (In development)

Increase inward investment Wirral Growth Plan

Thriving small
Businesses

Wirral Growth Plan

Vibrant tourism economy Growth Plan
Wirral Visitor Economy Strategy

Transport & technology
infrastructure fit for the future

Transport Strategy
Digital Strategy 

Page 58



3.2 PRINCIPLES FOR PRIORITISATION
Good practice suggests that, in order to maximise the impact of scrutiny, it is 
necessary to prioritise proposed topics within the work programme. Members 
may find the following criteria helpful in providing a guideline towards ensuring 
that the most significant topics are prioritised:

Principles for Prioritisation
Does the topic have a direct link with one of the 
2020 pledges?Wirral Plan Will the review lead to improved outcomes for 
Wirral residents?

Public Interest Does the topic have particular importance for Wirral 
Residents?

Transformation Will the review support the transformation of the 
Council?
Is the subject matter an area of significant spend or 
potential saving?Financial 

Significance Will the review support the Council in achieving its 
savings targets?
Is this the most appropriate time for this topic to be 
scrutinised?Timeliness / 

Effectiveness Will the review be a good use of Council 
resources?

By assessing prospective topics using these criteria, the Committee can 
prioritise an effective work programme that ensures relevance and the highest 
potential to enhance outcomes for residents.

3.3 DELIVERING THE WORK PROGRAMME 
It is anticipated that the work programme will be delivered through a 
combination of:

 Scrutiny reviews undertaken by task & finish groups
 Evidence days and workshops
 Committee reports provided by officers
 Standing committee agenda items, for example, performance 

monitoring and financial monitoring
 Spotlight sessions  
 Standing panels (where deemed necessary)  

As some of the selected topics may cut across the Wirral Plan themes, it is 
anticipated they may be of interest to members of more than one committee. 
In these circumstances, opportunities for members of more than one 
committee to work jointly on an item of scrutiny will be explored.  

Regular work programme update reports will provide the committee with an 
opportunity to plan and review its work across the municipal year. 

Page 59



4.0 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

4.1 Budget Savings Proposals

As part of the Committee’s work programme for the year, a scrutiny workshop 
was scheduled on 11th December 2018 for Members to consider a number of 
budget proposals before Cabinet makes its final decision as part of the 
budget setting process.  The scrutiny report of the workshop was presented at 
the previous Committee meeting on 22nd January, 2019 and was referred to 
the Cabinet meeting on 18th February, 2019.   

4.2 Camper Vans Task & Finish Scrutiny Review

An evidence session of the Campervan Task & Finish scrutiny review is 
scheduled to take place in March 2019. This session will explore some of the 
key issues relating to campervans, including the examination of case studies, 
similar local authority policy and benchmarking against comparable 
procedures in other locations across the UK.

4.3 Wirral Growth Company

As part of the Committee’s work programme, a briefing session to cover all 
aspects of Wirral Growth Company has been scheduled for 28th February for 
Members sitting on the Business O&S Committee and the Environment O&S 
Committee.  This session will include the background to the Wirral Growth 
Company, emerging business cases, the governance arrangements and the 
next steps.   

5.0 LCRCA OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY UPDATE
Following on from the two scrutiny workshops held in December 2018 
covering the Effectiveness of the Careers Service and Tourism, Culture & 
Marketing the City Region, a Tourism & Culture scrutiny review will 
commence in March / April.  The scope of this has yet to be agreed.  A 
workshop on EU Funding / Brexit Future convened on 23rd January, 2019 
and the write up of this session will be circulated to Members. 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Not Applicable

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Not Applicable

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
The delivery of the scrutiny work programme will be met from within existing 
resources. 

9.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
Not Applicable

10.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
Not Applicable

Page 60



11.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality 
implications. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Michael Lester
Scrutiny Officer
telephone:  (0151) 691-8628
email:   michaellester@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES: 
Appendix 1: Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Work programme 

REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 61

mailto:michaellester@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (As at 15/02/2019)
WORK PROGRAMME 

AGENDA ITEMS – Tuesday 5th March 2019

Item Format Officer / Councillor 
2018/19 Quarterly Finance Monitoring 
Report – Quarter 3

Report / Presentation Finance Officer

Sickness Absence Report Tony Williams, Head of Human 
Resources

2018/19 Quarterly Wirral Plan 
Performance Report - Quarter 3

Presentation To be confirmed 

Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority Update

Officer Report / 
Presentation

Rosemary Boylan, Policy and 
Strategy Manager (External)

Scrutiny Work Programme Update Report Report of the Chair of the 
Committee

STANDING AGENDA ITEMS

Item Format Officer / Councillor  
2018/19 Quarterly Finance Monitoring 
Report

Report / Presentation Finance to present report

2018/19 Quarterly Wirral Plan 
Performance Report

Report To be confirmed

Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority Update

Report / Presentation Rosemary Boylan, Policy and Strategy 
Manager (External)

Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority Overview & Scrutiny Update

Verbal / Report Chair of the Committee 

Page 63



Page 2 of 3

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE 

Item Format Timescale Lead 
Departmental 
Officer  

Progress / Comments

Camper Vans Scrutiny Review Task & Finish 2018/19 TBC Next evidence 
session arranged for 
March

Wirral Growth Company Member 
information 
session

2018/19 TBA Session scheduled for 
28th February, 2019

Wirral Waters Workshop TBC Brian Bailey / 
Alan Evans

Workshop held on 
16th October.  Item to 
remain on work 
programme to ensure 
Member oversight.
 

Budget Proposals Scrutiny Workshop December Senior 
Leadership 
Team 

Workshop convened 
on 11th December.  
Report presented at 
Committee meeting 
on 22nd January 2019 
and referred to 
Cabinet

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS – WAITING TO BE SCHEDULED (Consideration for new municipal year)

Item Format Approximate 
timescale 

Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Disaster Recovery Scrutiny Review 
– Follow-up report

Committee 
Report / 
Presentation

TBC TBC

Tourism Scrutiny Review – Follow-
up report

Committee 
Report / 
Presentation

TBC TBC

Digital Strategy Committee 
Report

TBC TBC

Assets Strategy and Action Plans 
update

Committee 
Report

TBC Jeannette Royale

Resident Parking Policy – Impact 
Report 

Committee 
Report

TBC Mark Smith

New Ferry Disaster Committee 
Report

July 2019 David Ball

Impact of Universal Credit Workshops TBC Lisa Jamieson

Page 64



Page 3 of 3

LCRCA OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Item Format Timescale Progress / Comments
Effectiveness of the Careers 
Service

Workshop 12th 
December 
2018

Workshop convened 
and outcomes to be 
considered

Tourism, Culture and Marketing 
the Region

Workshop 17th 
December 
2018

Workshop convened 
and outcomes to be 
considered

EU Funding/Brexit Workshop 23rd January 
2019

Workshop convened.
Committee to keep 
monitoring 
developments

Tourism & Culture Scrutiny 
Review

March / April 
2019

Scope to be 
confirmed

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Appendix for minute 39 - Investment Change Board ToR, 22/01/2019 Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	4 Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2018/19
	5 Absence Management
	Absence Management Report - appendix

	6 2018/19 Quarter 3 Wirral Plan Performance
	Enc. 1 for 2018/19 Quarter 3 Wirral Plan Performance

	7 Update on Liverpool City Region Developments
	8 Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Business O&S Committee Work Programme


